
Minutes of a Meeting of 

2012 CHARTER REVIEW COMMISSION 

Held May 21, 2012 

 

The sixth meeting of the 2012 Charter Review Commission was called to order at 6:00 p.m. by 

Chairman Don Zwilling.  The following members of the Commission were present: Mark 

Barbour, Mike Caputo, Matt Clever, Dr. Gina Crawford, Brian Cruse, Sally Fell, Clete Miller, 

Don Zwilling.  Absent:  Barbara Quinn.  Also present: Mayor Sutherland, Law Director Ebert, 

Fire Chief Chris Lyons, Civil Service Commissioner Martha Krebs, and residents Susan 

Murnane and Sally Irwin Price. 

 

The first order of business this evening was the review of the minutes of the meeting of the 

Charter Review Commission held May 7, 2012.  MOTION by Cruse, second by Miller, to 

approve the minutes as prepared and distributed.  Motion carried 8-0. 

   

PUBLIC COMMENTS 

 

Martha Krebs, Bay Village Civil Service Commissioner since October 2002, addressed the 

Charter Review Commission.  Mr. James Potter, Chairman of the Civil Service Commission, has 

asked Mrs. Krebs to address the commission this evening in the continuing theme of “If it ain’t 

broke, don’t fix it.”  Mrs. Krebs stated that the Civil Service Commissioners were appointed by 

the Mayor, work without pay, and administer the tests for the police and fire entry level, as well 

as promotional examinations.  There have not been any problems with the way the Civil Service 

Commission is established under the Charter.  Mrs. Krebs stated that she would be very 

concerned if there would be changes.  A majority of the cities in the state operate under the Ohio 

Revised Code statute rather than a charter.  The charter allows Bay Village to be a little more 

flexible than operating under the state statute.  They cannot deviate without a good reason.  The 

Bay Village City Charter was crafted so beautifully because it works.  The Civil Service 

Commission does not have any problems.  If there are changes, Mrs. Krebs noted, she would be 

concerned that there is a mine field out there waiting. 

 

Mr. Zwilling asked if the examinations are done in concert with the City of Rocky River.  Mrs. 

Krebs stated that a joint test has been conducted with Rocky River.  The schedule of the two 

cities doesn’t always coincide to make it possible to repeat that effort.  The fee paid by the 

participants pays the cost of the test so there is not an economical factor to the cities involved in 

joint testing.  Tests create eligibility lists which are valid for a period of two years.  The 

expiration of the eligibility list and the timing for a new test does not always line up with the 

schedule of another city.  Mrs. Krebs noted that it is a good idea for the candidates to have 

testing with other cities, to reduce the amount of testing fees they are required to pay.  Mayor 

Sutherland had proposed this idea to the Civil Service Commission.  Mr. Zwilling noted that the 

Cuyahoga County Office of Regional Collaboration is looking at the specific item of joint testing 

among cities. 

 

Mrs. Krebs stated that the Police Chief and Fire Chief have input as to the type of test to be used, 

and where the tests will be purchased.  Mrs. Krebs stated that the charter cities do have flexibility 

and if we take the civil service out of the charter, we are subject to Ohio Revised Code and will 



Charter Review Commission 

May 21, 2012 

 

2 

 

not be as flexible.  The ordinances would have to be crafted so carefully.  What we are doing has 

been working.  Mrs. Krebs noted that there have been no appeals and she would not like to see 

something put on the books that could be challenged. 

 

Mrs. Krebs advised that she attended a Civil Service Commission seminar last October given by 

a law firm in Columbus.  It mostly addressed statutory cities and she learned that civil service 

regulations must be crafted very carefully. 

 

Mr. Zwilling stated that the topic has generated a lot of interest.  The sub-committee taking this 

under consideration will be listening to both sides. 

 

Mrs. Krebs commented that politics is not part of the civil service function.  The work of the 

Civil Service Commission is impartial and removed from the union, and from the city.  It is a 

commission unto itself and it has worked. 

 

Mr. Barbour asked where the tests are purchased.  He was informed that Cooperative Personnel 

Services, the Ohio Police Chiefs’ Association, and the Ohio Fire Chiefs’ Association have been 

the vendors for the test material for the City of Bay Village. 

 

Mr. Zwilling asked if the testing procedure is for just fire and police personnel.  He was 

informed that testing has also been done to create eligibility lists for Clerk-Secretaries.  The 

Clerk-Secretaries are considered classified employees. 

 

Mr. Caputo asked if, at some point, it is in the best interest of the city to work to find a combined 

force of some sort with another municipality, would Mrs. Krebs feel under the purview of the 

Bay Village Civil Commission they would have the authority to administer tests for the joint 

force.  Mrs. Krebs stated that she believes they do.  The commission has had Law Director Ebert 

sit in on several meetings to discuss giving joint tests.  Mrs. Krebs stated that in addition to the 

timing of the expiration of other municipalities’ eligibility lists and the testing schedule to create 

new lists, some of the civil service rules differ in regard to age, education, and adding military 

points.   

 

Mr. Cruse stated that there has been discussion the last couple of years about a West Shore 

Regional Fire Department that could potentially include Westlake, North Olmsted, Fairview 

Park, and Bay Village.  Mr. Caputo’s question is, if that entity came into being, would a test 

administered by the Bay Village Civil Service Commission still be viable with a regional 

department.  Mrs. Krebs stated that she is not sure what the Mayor is proposing.  Mr. Zwilling 

stated that further discussion on this matter will be held later. 

 

Mr. Zwilling thanked Commissioner Martha Krebs for her time this evening. 

 

There being no further comments from the audience, the public comments section of the meeting 

was closed. 

 

 

 



Charter Review Commission 

May 21, 2012 

 

3 

 

Article IV – Administrative Officers and Departments 

 

Matt Clever, Chairman of the Sub-Committee assigned to study Articles IV and VI of the 

Charter, advised that the committee met with Law Director Ebert two weeks ago.  Mr. Ebert has 

informed the sub-committee that he needs additional time to work on language for the 

recommendation of the sub-committee regarding the allowance for the possibility of a regional 

collaboration for the Department of Law and Department of Finance.   

 

Article VI – Civil Service Commission 

 

Mr. Matt Clever stated that the sub-committee met with Mayor Sutherland and Law Director 

Ebert at great length about this issue.  The sub-committee was not familiar with how civil service 

works, from a procedural level, and were pleased to learn that there was universal agreement that 

civil service works and helps to identify good, qualified candidates.  The process is solid.  As 

they spoke with the Mayor about the potential of moving civil service from the charter to the 

administrative code, they found that it mirrors the line of thinking that they applied to Article IV, 

in allowing for greater flexibility for the city moving forward, giving the fiscal climate the city is 

in with constantly decreasing revenues and looking more toward regional collaboration.  The 

discussion of a regional fire department is already under way.  They quickly realized, when 

speaking with the Mayor, that were they to move to that kind of regional collaboration, there 

would necessarily have to be an amendment to the charter made to allow that to happen.  The 

discussion of the sub-committee is to move the civil service commission language to the 

administrative code and replace Article VI with Section 4.02 of the model charter.  They believe 

this strongly states the commitment to civil service in the merit principle, but allows for 

increased flexibility given the fluid nature in the region.  Section 4.02 of the model charter reads: 

“All appointments and promotions of city officers and employees shall be made solely on the 

basis of merit and fitness demonstrated by a valid and reliable examination or other evidence of 

competence.”  That commitment to the merit principle in the charter is important, but the 

discussion now is where the actual language of civil service is housed and how that impacts the 

ability to adapt and change the environment around us. 

 

Mayor Sutherland commented that this was discussed in great depth with the sub-committee and 

Law Director Ebert on a conference call.  The Mayor stated that her recommendation is to put 

this on the ballot to get Civil Service moved out of the charter and under the administrative code, 

as it is.  She stated it does work fine, but as they look forward they are going to be facing some 

significant challenges.  This coming year the estate tax is ending.  There will probably be some 

carry-over into 2013, but after that the city is looking at somewhere between $500,000 and $1 

million out of the operating budget of $11 million.  On top of that, the state will continue to pick 

away at local government funding.  There is a measure in the state to try to reform municipal 

income tax collections.  All of these challenges are lining up to the point where we have got to 

look at doing things differently, better, and more efficiently going forward.  Part of that is going 

to be a collaborative process.  There is no other way to save money with police and fire, other 

than laying off half of the forces which nobody wants to do.  But we can be much more efficient 

and provide better service if we collaborate on a regional basis. 

 



Charter Review Commission 

May 21, 2012 

 

4 

 

The Mayor continued, stating that three years ago they obtained a grant to do a very in-depth 

study that took about 18 months.  The recommendation came back that there can be a little 

savings on operating because you still have to have bodies, but you can better deploy people and 

save on large equipment purchases.  To that point, they have been working steadily, for the next 

year and one-half to this point, meeting on a monthly basis, talking about how they are going to 

implement this project.  They have the extensive $160,000 study and they are currently looking 

at some different options for moving forward.  Everyone is at the table the same as they were 

when they put together the Central Dispatch Center. 

 

Mr. Zwilling asked who conducted the study.  The Mayor replied that a company called 

Emergency Services Consulting International conducted the study.  She stated that they were 

very good, very experienced, and they have done this all over the county in numerous locations.  

They are still helping them go through this very, very complex process.  But, one of the things to 

deal with is the fact that civil service is still in the charter.  They are going to have to go the 

voters to get that out.  It can either be done now, or later. 

 

Mr. Cruse asked why civil service has to be taken out of the charter. 

 

The Mayor stated that civil service in the charter specifies a police chief and a fire chief.  If they 

want to go forward and pull out or combine, and have a safety director, they have to go to the 

voters.   

 

Mr. Cruse stated that he understands somewhere in the charter it says that we have to have a fire 

chief and police chief.  But it doesn’t say we can’t have a safety director.   

 

Mr. Zwilling suggested that the wording of the charter provision could be changed. 

 

Mayor Sutherland stated that the other issue being faced is if and when they regionalize, as 

alluded to by Mr. Caputo, they are going to have to integrate the civil service commissions.  If 

there are four communities and four separate civil service commissions with slightly different 

testing parameters, all of that has to be equalized and brought together.  Why not just move it out 

of the charter which will allow the flexibility to tweak that as things develop.   

 

Mr. Zwilling asked if changes in the administrative code are covered by ordinance.  The Mayor 

stated that changes are covered by ordinance. 

 

Mayor Sutherland stated that most of the municipalities in the state of Ohio are chartered.  There 

are very few that are actually statutory.  Just because one section of the charter would get moved 

to the administrative code does not make a statutory city; we are still a charter city.  Even under 

the charter, we still have to comply with the Ohio Revised Code. 

 

Mr. Cruse stated that he does not understand the basic premise of taking Article VI out of the 

charter completely and putting it in the administrative code, and replacing that with Section 4.02 

of the model charter.  He asked what is being gained.  The Mayor responded that they are 

gaining flexibility.  Mr. Cruse stated that the flexibility being gained is to get rid of civil service.  

Now there would be nothing that says you must continue to use it.  If you take it out of the 



Charter Review Commission 

May 21, 2012 

 

5 

 

charter, all that remains is the merit system that leaves it open for interpretation, reading, “Solely 

on the basis of merit and fitness demonstrated by a valid and reliable examination, or other 

evidence of competence.”  It doesn’t say we are going to use civil service.  It is not in the charter 

anymore.  The move to the administrative code is a huge, philosophical change away from civil 

service. 

 

Mayor Sutherland stated that there is no desire at this point in time, to do anything to change 

how civil service runs.  However, if we go to a regional fire district, for instance, there has been 

discussion about hiring somebody in temporarily from the outside to head it up.  We would not 

be able to do that under current civil service rules.   

 

Mr. Zwilling asked if our civil service commission in Bay Village would be revised as far as it 

pertains to the Fire Department.  The Mayor stated that it could be.  There could be different 

positions, different promotions that might have to take place if we are looking for someone 

specific to head up one of the areas that has been identified.  She stated, hypothetically, that if 

they wanted to bring in somebody that is a training specialist they cannot hire somebody from 

the outside if it is in the charter.   

 

Mr. Cruse stated that IF a regional fire district does occur, it is going to have to go to a vote of 

the people in all of these communities to be enacted.  The Mayor stated that this would depend 

on how it is structured, and how it is funded. 

 

Mr. Zwilling asked the four cities being discussed.  The Mayor replied that the four cities are 

Rocky River, Fairview Park, Westlake, and Bay Village.  Mr. Zwilling stated that modifications 

for their charters are going to be needed.  The Mayor stated that Rocky River already has it out, 

and Westlake is talking it about it. 

 

Mrs. Fell stated that if the charter says we have to have a Chief of Police and Chief of Fire, if the 

Chief of Police is a regional position, does that satisfy this charter requirement?  Mayor 

Sutherland stated that she asked Law Director Ebert that question and he said that by nature of 

the Charter the inference is that it would be Bay Village. 

 

Mr. Caputo stated that one of the things he is trying to understand for this process is that is there 

an agreement among the Charter Commission members that with Article VI of the Charter 

currently in place we could not currently entertain a joint fire district with other municipalities.  

Would Article VI prohibit Bay Village from undertaking that effort? 

 

Mr. Barbour stated that they discussed that some civil service cities would give points for 

military service, and some don’t.  He asked where those regulations are contained.  The Mayor 

stated that this is covered under the Civil Service Rules and Regulations.  Each city has its own 

rules.  He asked how those rules get changed or adopted.  The Mayor stated that the commission 

has the power to change the rules, without Council action or voter approval. 

 

Mr. Zwilling asked if the regional fire department is established with these four cities, would the 

individual fire departments in each of the four cities be abolished.  Mayor Sutherland stated that 

this is the long term plan.  There are several different ways that this can be structured.  There can 



Charter Review Commission 

May 21, 2012 

 

6 

 

be a separate fire taxing authority, which is not her preference, or another governmental entity 

that could be under the Council of Governments. 

 

Mr. Zwilling stated that the paramedics fall under the Fire Department.  We have a special tax 

for the paramedics.  It is a charter millage.  He asked how that revenue being generated for the 

paramedics would work for a regional system.  The Mayor stated that it would depend on how 

the regional department would be structured. 

 

Mr. Zwilling stated that if a revision would be entertained, the Law Director feels that to attain 

flexibility the change needed would be with the fire chief position.  

 

Mr. Caputo stated that what guided him, when reviewing the sections, was to find ways to 

maximize flexibility as a city to adjust for whatever issues should arise, seen or not seen right 

now.  When trying to understand the civil service section, Mr. Caputo felt that it became 

apparent that should at some point down the road it be determined by the city leadership that it is 

in the best interest of the city to combine some type of service with other municipalities, the 

existing section was prohibitive and would need to be modified in order for the city to 

accommodate whatever that issue should become. 

 

Mr. Barbour stated that when he reads Article VI, Section 6.3 it says that the classified service 

shall be comprised of the Chief of Police, and Chief of Fire, and all the positions not specifically 

included in the unclassified category.  Mr. Barbour stated that he reads that to say that if you 

have a police chief or if you have a fire chief, then they have to be in civil service.   

 

Mr. Caputo cited Section 6.1, Membership, and who is ultimately charged with reviewing, 

administering, and scoring the tests.  If it is a multi-community undertaking, how does the Bay 

Village commission supersede the other communities?   

 

Mr. Barbour stated that he agrees that is an issue, but does Section 6 require us to have a fire 

chief?   

 

Mr. Caputo stated that 6.1 requires us to have a civil service commission, and, if at some point in 

the future, a decision is made that there is going to be a regional fire department and the hiring 

practices of the fire department fall under the purview of the civil service commission, this 

section would need to be changed.  This section is limiting in terms of the flexibility the city may 

be able to enjoy at some time in the future because of the interaction of four separate civil service 

commissions.  The ability to move it from the charter into the administrative code and grant that 

type of flexibility, if and when the situation arises, seems to be consistent to providing flexibility. 

Presumably, all the communities would get together and create what is amenable to each of 

them, collectively. 

 

Mr. Zwilling stated that, assuming the fire department initiative went forward, we would still 

have a civil service commission in Bay Village to cover police and clerk-secretaries.  Our civil 

service commission would not be the sole civil service commission for the fire department. 

 



Charter Review Commission 

May 21, 2012 

 

7 

 

Mayor Sutherland stated that she would envision there would have to be regional civil service 

commission. 

 

Dr. Crawford asked if it is not removed at this time, is it necessary to wait for another ten years 

for the next charter review before there is an opportunity again?  

 

Mr. Cruse stated that Council can place a charter amendment any year that the fire district issue 

came to the fore.  The Mayor stated that is in the fore. 

 

Mr. Zwilling stated that last meeting there was an excellent, extensive study on the city manager 

form of government.  He stated that he totally agrees that the budgets of cities from several 

different vantage points are being affected.  He looks at this civil service issue as more crucial 

from a financial standpoint than the city manager discussion.  If we can provide the flexibility, it 

behooves us to do so.  The state government is reigning in the state subsidies to cities and school 

systems.  Every area, corporate and government has to rethink how to do things to make it as 

efficient as possible. 

 

Mayor Sutherland stated that she sees the next three years as being really tough.  She will be 

discussing an issue with Council this evening that will save approximately one half million 

dollars over three years. 

 

Mr. Clever stated that in the initial review of civil service by the sub-committee, they did not 

find any opposition to civil service.  The commission members do a great job and it costs an 

unbelievable minimum amount of money.  It is a great system.  That alleviated some of the 

reservations about moving it from the charter to the administrative code, for flexibility purposes.  

There is not a group out there that is gunning for civil service.  Universal agreement was found 

that it is a great system, and including that language about the merit system in the charter 

reiterates the commitment to civil service. 

 

Mr. Cruse suggested taking any current personalities out of the discussion.  Civil Service was 

developed to protect against the over-politicalization of government hiring.  For example, if Mr. 

Cruse were elected Mayor he would not be allowed to hire Mark Barbour and his entire family 

because they are his friends and they need jobs.  It is supposed to be a way, in its essence, where 

there is an unbiased measure of a person’s ability.  If you move Article VI to the codified 

ordinances and take it out of the charter, without a vote of the people, a Mayor and a Council 

could do away with civil service, period.  You no longer have the protection of requiring the vote 

of the people to keep that civil service system in place.  We have all heard people say that civil 

service is good, the process is good, and it has good results.  By this action of moving it to the 

administrative code, you are placing it in a position where a Mayor and Council could get rid of 

it without having to go back to the voters. 

 

Dr. Crawford suggested saying in the charter that the city will have a Civil Service Commission 

but it will be in the administrative code. 

 



Charter Review Commission 

May 21, 2012 

 

8 

 

Mrs. Krebs stated that the Constitution of the State of Ohio guarantees civil service so there is 

not a chance that a Mayor and administration could get rid of it.  Mr. Cruse asked why it is in 

any charter.  Mrs. Krebs stated that it is the administration of it that is in the charter. 

 

Mayor Sutherland stated that when these were put in municipal charters it was when these 

charters were first written, and there were no other protections.  Civil service came into being in 

the 1920’s during the reform era to depoliticize the system.  When the Bay Village charter was 

written in the late 1940’s it was twenty years after the reform era.  There was no union protection 

at that point.  That came in in the late 1980’s.  Now, there is double protection in some ways.  If 

it is guaranteed by the Ohio Constitution, the Mayor cannot imagine that in the next ten years a 

Mayor would come in and gut civil service. 

 

Mr. Cruse asked if the Mayor could imagine seriously discussing a regional fire district ten years 

ago.  He stated that he is not trying to be the lone defender, but before any issue is taken to the 

voters on changing the charter there has to be a compelling reason.  Charters were written a long 

time ago and they tend to stand the test of time.  The United States Constitution is 200 plus years 

old and it has been amended twenty-two times.  That is not a lot of changes over time.  Mr. 

Cruse wants to make sure that we don’t decide in a half-hour discussion this is the right way to 

go because there are many implications for it. 

 

Sally Fell stated that she is totally aware of how the charter changes, and not so much about the 

ordinances.  The process of changing the ordinances is an affirmative vote of the majority of 

Council.  The charter goes to the vote of the people. 

 

Mr. Zwilling stated that Council cannot abolish the Civil Service Commission if it is guaranteed 

by the Ohio Constitution. 

 

Mr. Miller stated that the purpose of abolishing it from the city would be to adopt a regional 

charter commission to move into that realm of regionalization.  That would be the only cause 

that would move four of those seven people on Council to say this would be a good idea. 

 

Mr. Barbour stated that if the purpose of moving this is to facilitate regionalism, it would be 

better to make the change when the requirements are known.  Mr. Barbour stated that he always 

believes in the law of unintended consequences.  If the change is made moving the charter 

provision of civil service into the administrative code, you open the door to changes that are not 

contemplated.  He asked if it wouldn’t be better to make the change specific to the need of a 

regional fire department. 

 

Mr. Caputo stated that he believes it is incumbent upon the Charter Review Commission to 

provide that flexibility if and when the time comes.  He does not know if he wants the members 

charged with making those decisions to decide what should or should not be in the charter based 

on the issue they are trying to be responsive toward.  Mr. Caputo stated that he uses the premise 

of maximum flexibility as the guiding principle throughout this effort.  As a piece of this, Section 

6.1 is inherently flawed in terms of the city’s ability to undertake a joint effort for anything that 

falls under the purview of the Civil Service Commission.  Piece-mealing the charter based on the 

issue of the day doesn’t seem to be the task here.  The task here is how to provide for the 



Charter Review Commission 

May 21, 2012 

 

9 

 

maximum level of flexibility.  This would seem to do it.  If there is a concern about the City of 

Bay Village no longer conveying a civil service mindset to its employees, that is not allowed 

under the constitution.  This is about how we administer it.  Along those lines, it makes more 

sense in the administrative code than it does in the charter.  Mr. Caputo stated that he does not 

think it is incumbent upon him to say that we don’t want police to be joined with other 

organizations so we’re not going to do it for police, but we are going to do it for fire.  His job is 

to allow for that flexibility, if and when the time comes, that is why this section, particularly 

Section 6.1 is ripe to be modified. 

 

Mr. Barbour asked if civil service was an issue when the central dispatch center was created.  

The Mayor stated that the central dispatch center employees are not civil service employees and 

they are not in a union.  They are employees of the City of Westlake and the cities of the Council 

of Governments each contribute a portion of their pay.   

 

Mr. Barbour stated that he does not want to make changes without being able to foresee their 

effects.  The civil service provision in the charter seems to have worked for so long he is hesitant 

to make changes to it for that reason.  If it is guaranteed by the Ohio Constitution there must be 

some interplay. Mr. Barbour stated that his philosophy is different.  He is not in favor of making 

changes unless he can foresee what the action is going to be.  He agrees with the premise of Mr. 

Caputo that Section 6.1 will be a hindrance as presently written to doing the particular thing that 

is being discussed, which is just one thing. 

 

Mr. Clever stated that the thing to bear in mind is that this is a process that comes around every 

ten years.  We all know the reality of what the city is being slapped in the face with every year 

with the budget which is why we are moving in that direction.  Mr. Clever stated that he 

understands Mr. Barbour’s point about the law of unintended consequences.  Mr. Caputo makes 

a very fair and valid point that this is administrative language and simply because of that the 

administrative code is the proper place for it.  The recommendation is for using the model charter 

language.  Whether we say civil service or merit system, we are still establishing in the charter 

the need for a civil service commission. 

 

Mr. Caputo stated that the question is what hiring practices, what qualification methods are going 

to be used, to determine what type of process should be placed over the classified employee.  

Whether we call that a civil service commission or call it something else, what we are trying to 

get at is making sure that we are in agreement on fundament practices that are in place.  Mr. 

Caputo stated that he is not going to suggest that by putting 4.02 in the charter we are going to 

inherently maintain a civil service commission.  We are not.  He is suggesting is what we are 

putting into the charter by Section 4.02 is the process that a civil service commission is designed 

to follow.  Whether we call it a civil service commission, or call it nothing at all, which is what 

we are contemplating with 4.02, what we are recommending of putting into the charter the 

process by which those decisions need to be made.  Call whatever body that makes those 

decisions whatever you want to call it.  It is about putting in the charter the process that will be 

used to guide that body.  Whether it is a body that is established by administrative code, a body 

that is established by a multi-jurisdictional government, a body that is established by whatever 

entity ultimately establishes it, the process of 4.02 will be the guiding principle behind how those 

decisions get reached.  That is what we are trying to do.   



Charter Review Commission 

May 21, 2012 

 

10 

 

 

Mr. Barbour stated that presently the charter does not say we will have a civil service 

commission.  It just says we will have a civil service commission and these are the employees 

that will be subject to it and these are the ones that will not.  The Civil Service Commission 

applies the standards they decide to test.  What we seem to be talking about now is either 

expanding the charter to spell out more things or putting a generic statement in then that says we 

intend to follow the law, whatever the law might be. 

 

Mr. Caputo stated that his assumption is if it is in the charter it will be given the same level of 

respect, whether it is Section 4.02 or Section 6. 

 

Mr. Barbour stated that the principle of Section 4.02 says we shall follow state and federal law, 

and/or a standard.  It is very generic.  If we are going to make this kind of change we need to 

have that now on the table as to what is going to happen to the civil service commission when it 

falls under the council, and how far do you envision council’s rule making ability extending into 

civil service.  If you are going to get rid of something, it is incumbent upon us to question what is 

going to take its place. 

 

Mr. Cruse stated the only difference he would have is that making the switch to Section 4.02 is 

taking the process out of the charter.  Article VI puts process in the charter.  Mr. Cruse stated he 

would like to take on the issue of finding out what the Ohio Constitution requires of a city, a 

charter city or not, in terms of civil service.  Mr. Cruse stated that he can probably be persuaded 

that with a little tinkering in Section 4.02 having that section replacing Article VI, and having 

Article VI moved to the administrative code, but he does not know how it interplays.  He wants 

to know what the State of Ohio requires of the city in terms of civil service.  While this is great 

discussion if we get rid of this we could be hosed by the Ohio Constitution and this could have 

all been an exercise in futility. 

 

Mrs. Fell stated that also to be learned is where it is in Ohio, and who changes it. 

 

Mr. Cruse stated that the idea is to build the flexibility into the process.  How is this system 

employed and put to use on a day-to-day basis?  That may be something better served in the 

administrative code where it can be adapted as environment change. 

 

Mr. Miller stated that part of the language that comes into commentary follows the two 

suggestions from the model charter.  They have considered much of what we have discussed.  

They have the merit principle and the merit system; those two distinct methods.  The 

commentary really is saying we are suggesting a simplified language to be a part of your charter 

due to the methods of a civil service commission having its own jurisdictions and its own rules 

and being its own body.  They are not saying it should be removed because by state and federal 

law it has to be part of your charter.  What they are emphasizing is that they are trying to 

simplify the language as part of the charter so that any language that is currently in there about 

civil service could be more restrictive than it needs to be.  Maybe what we are suggesting is 

simplification, but then look to the civil service commission to redraft its own rules to include 

the language if it needs to have that language as part of its function.  If it needs to have the 



Charter Review Commission 

May 21, 2012 

 

11 

 

classifications better defined, it can do that.  If it needs to have who the members are better 

defined, it is moved out of charter into the rules. 

 

Mr. Zwilling stated that this is receiving the most interest of anything being discussed.  He stated 

that we need some suggested language in terms of the commission on what is being proposed.  

Mr. Zwilling would like it to be a little more than he sees in Section 4.02 of the model charter.  

He would like suggested language brought to the Charter Review Commission in two weeks, if 

that is possible.  Mr. Cruse will check to see what the Ohio Constitution says regarding civil 

service.  Law Director Ebert stated that he does not believe that cities are required by the Ohio 

Constitution to have civil service protection but he will check for sure. 

 

Chief Lyons addressed Mrs. Krebs and asked how much pressure could be brought to bear upon 

the commissioners politically to change or set up rules by council with the Civil Service 

Commission in the City Charter.  Mrs. Krebs stated that the rules the Civil Service Commission 

has are not philosophical rules.  They are procedural rules as to when and how the tests will be 

given.  The Commission decides how the notice will be given, the cut-off score for passing and 

failing, and how many people will be kept on the list.  Mrs. Krebs stated that the commission 

members are appointed and unless they resign they are there.  Mayor Sutherland noted that the 

members are political appointees of the Mayor. 

 

Mrs. Fell stated that she would like to see the change made in the City of Rocky River.  What 

was it before, and what did they change it to? 

 

Dr. Crawford stated that this almost looks like labor and employment practices.  It was approved 

in 1962 and talking about employment issues that were relevant at that time.  Dr. Crawford stated 

if these are just labor and employment issues, she is confused why it is in the City Charter.   

 

Law Director Ebert stated that since he has been with the city since 1981, there has never been 

public pressure or administrative pressure on civil service.  He stated that his only comment on 

the whole issue is that labor contracts have eroded civil service over the years.  Things have 

evolved and changed since 1962, as far as labor unions are concerned, more so with police and 

fire than some of the other unions.  Mr. Ebert stated you are seeing it now in the City of 

Cleveland, the topic with the Fire Chief being civil service in the City of Cleveland.  Also, 

Cleveland is going to put into their charter that any second employment has to be approved by 

the city.   

 

Mr. Cruse stated that there are about 110 employees in the city.  About 55 are covered by civil 

service.  Once a policeman or fireman gets hired, they are probably more influenced by union 

contracts and unions then civil service.   

 

Mayor Sutherland stated that this is one of those big picture items, looking at the future.  No one 

can tell what is exactly is going to happen.  But we are not going to be facing a happy time going 

forward.  You can make decisions and wait until everything is perfectly aligned, but that is not 

how the whole economy has turned over the last couple of years.  It is not going to relent in the 

next couple of years. 

 



Charter Review Commission 

May 21, 2012 

 

12 

 

Mr. Barbour suggested challenging each others’ comments, not in a negative way.  We should 

kick these things around hard to make sure we do reach a conclusion, even though it comes 

through a little bit of friction. 

 

Mr. Zwilling suggested looking at Mayor Sutherland’s comments as she gave them up front, 

reading Article VI as it is now, and Section 4.02.  He assigned the sub-committee to put 

suggested language in front of the Charter Review Commission on both sections. 

 

Mr. Ebert stated that the one thing the Civil Service Commission does is a great job on is testing 

and certifications.  That has been more predominantly their role than it was long ago.  There 

have only been two hearings before the Civil Service Commission in recent years.    

 

Mr. Caputo noted that he will be unable to attend the June 4, 2012 Charter Review Commission 

meeting due to high school commencement.  The next meeting of the Charter Review 

Commission will be held Tuesday, June 5 at 5:00 p.m.  In addition to suggested language for 

civil service alterations to be prepared by the sub-committee, the remaining sections of the 

charter review commission will be taken under consideration. 

 

Mayor Sutherland stated that she thinks there has been more substantive discussion about the 

Bay Village City Charter with this group than with the last Charter Review Commission.   

 

Mr. Miller asked if there are other articles in the charter on which the previous commissions may 

have resolved their fact findings.  We realize in our discussion that the dates we projected some 

time ago when we first met aren’t completely accurate.  If Council or the Mayor needed to call a 

session to review the commission’s findings to move them forward to the ballot, we may have 

bought a little more time if there is validity to continue discussion on certain matters. 

 

Mr. Clever stated that the Board of Elections deadline for charter amendments is September 7.  

The only stipulation is that the Board would like to have any proposed language at least three 

weeks in advance because of translating everything to Spanish to accommodate voters.  

 

Mr. Miller stated that it may alleviate a little pressure that if we are finding ourselves trying to 

meet a previous deadline, we aren’t rushed to make judgment on something or qualify or 

disqualify it. 

 

Mr. Cruse stated that the Charter Review Commission has six months from the time they were 

constituted by the Mayor to finish their job.  If they don’t make this November, it isn’t the end of 

the world.  It could wait until the next November election.   

 

Mayor Sutherland stated that there is also a law pending now in the state legislature that they 

would eliminate February and August special elections.   

 

Mr. Zwilling stated that Articles 8, 11, and 13 of the Charter are still to be reviewed.  Mr. 

Zwilling will send information out by email to see who would like to cover these sections. 

 



Charter Review Commission 

May 21, 2012 

 

13 

 

Meeting adjourned at 7:25 p.m.  The next meeting of the Charter Review Commission will be 

held Tuesday, June 5 at 5 p.m. 

 

 

 

_____________________________  _____________________________ 

Don Zwilling, Chairman   Joan Kemper, Secretary 


